




19.1086.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/14/2019
Revised
Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1467

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $0 $398,558 $0 $398,558 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $398,558 $0 $398,558 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

This bill transfers the statutory authority over grain, grain buyers, warehousing, deposits, and warehousemen from 
the Public Service Commission to the agriculture commissioner.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The North Dakota Department of Agriculture (NDDA) developed an estimate of expenditures believed necessary to 
efficiently operate the program. The Public Service Commission (PSC) provided NDDA revenue, appropriation, and 
expenditure data for the 17-19 biennium. The analysis of this data is included in 3B.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

PSC projected the 2017-2019 biennium revenue to be $350,000. NDDA used this projection for the 19-21 and 21-23 
bienniums. All revenue is deposited in the general fund.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

PSC indicated that the program expenditures for the 17-19 biennium are $367,034 for salaries and operating for 
1.75 FTEs.

NDDA expenditure estimates take into consideration the following:

 - 4 FTEs (1 program coordinator and 3 field staff)
 - Salaries and Wages: $678,592
 - Operating: $87,000



 - Total biennium budget: $765,592

Based on this data, the fiscal impact will be $398,558 per biennium.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

The appropriation impact is the same as the expenditure impact outlined in 3B. This bill contains no appropriation 
language. If this bill passes, appropriation language will need to be added to this bill or the agriculture 
commissioner's budget (SB 2009).

Name: Junkert/Baumiller

Agency: Agriculture

Telephone: 328-2231

Date Prepared: 01/23/2019



19.1086.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/14/2019

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1467

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Expenditures $0 $0 $765,592 $0 $765,592 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

This bill transfers the statutory authority over grain, grain buyers, warehousing, deposits, and warehousemen from 
the Public Service Commission to the agriculture commissioner.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

It is difficult for the Department of Agriculture (NDDA) to determine the fiscal impact of this law change. NDDA 
developed an estimate of expenditures believed necessary to efficiently operate the program. PSC is in the process 
of developing fiscal data.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

NDDA is unable to determine the revenue impacts at this time.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

The expenditure estimates take into consideration the following:

 - 4 FTEs (1 program coordinator and 3 field staff)
 - Salaries and Wages: $678,592
 - Operating: $87,000
 - Total biennium budget: $765,592



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

This bill contains no appropriation language. If this bill passes, appropriation language will need to be added to this 
bill or the agriculture commissioner's budget (SB 2009).

Name: Junkert/Baumiller

Agency: Agriculture

Telephone: 328-2231

Date Prepared: 01/22/2019
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to moving the authority over grain, grain buyers, warehousing, deposits, and 
warehousemen from the PSC to the agriculture commissioner; to provide a penalty; and to 
provide a continuing appropriation. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments #1-3 

 
Chairman Dennis Johnson, Sponsor:  (Attachment #1) 
 
(4:00) 
There is a federal inspector that said years back there were 10 state inspectors that he 
conferred with.  Then there were 5 inspectors.  Today I’ve been told there are 1½ to 1 ¾ 
positions.  The federal inspector said he doesn’t even know who it is. 
 
We have to strengthen this program.  I feel the industry wants this program. 
 
Doug Goehring, North Dakota Agriculture Commissioner: (Attachment #2) 
 
Representative McWilliams:  Could you explain the details of a roving grain buyer? 
 
Doug Goehring:  A roving buyer may be a buyer purchasing grain from farmers, may be 
doing some commercial business and market through their own channels they can make 
money.  We probably have over 90 grain buyers in North Dakota.  We need to provide 
oversight like we do with our livestock/dairy program. 
 
Representative Satrom:  Weren’t there some warning signs in the current situation?  Do we 
have bonding requirements now for roving grain buyers? 
 
Doug Goehring:  I don’t have that program now so I am not sure.   Any time you use a bond 
it is another cost that goes to the farmer. 
 
Warning signs—for the last 5 years commodity prices have gone down.  Farmers receive  
7 to 9 cents for the wheat that is in a $2.00 loaf of bread.  Farmers were willing to believe 
that the buyer had a better price when it was high.   
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The public believes that someone is watching out by regulating.  I had a livestock dealer that 
after 10 years bounced some checks.  We caught him right away and minimized damage. 
 
Representative Satrom:  Do we have licensing or bonding when it comes to grain buyers? 
 
Doug Goehring:   There is bonding and some oversight? 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  Do we have regulatory authority over the brokers?  That was 
part of the downfall of the roving buyer? 
 
Doug Goehring:  This is the time to make modifications.  If I receive the authority, I will work 
with the PSC.  Something has to change.  Our mediation program will always step up to 
provide whatever assistance we can.  We shouldn’t have to have conversations about 
indemnity programs.  Those are fine but they are self-insured.  Us as farmers pay for those 
programs.  Prevention and oversight are the answer. 
 
Representative Skroch:  You mentioned about not allowing roving grain buyers to do 
business in North Dakota.  Do you see a down side to banning those types of buyers? 
 
Doug Goehring:  Yes.  I think we can have all of them because they provide different 
opportunities.  They just need oversight. 
 
Opposition:   
 
Randy Christmann, Commissioner, Public Service Commission:  (Attachment #3) 
 
There are some roving grain buyers that have no facility.  A lot of roving grain buyers do have 
facilities.  They might be from another state. 
 
(31:53) 
The Senate Bill is the best for North Dakota.   
 
The discussion has been about roving grain buyers.  That is the type of business of the most 
recent insolvency.  In past sessions when we sought the ability to do more, the insolvencies 
were processors or specialty crops.  The one thing in common with all these insolvencies is 
they are unique and there is not a pattern.  I hope the conversation does not get derailed by 
this one type because it is the most recent. The problem is that we are unable to do as 
thorough a financial review as we need to be able to.  There have been over 150 insolvencies 
in less than 20 years around the country.   
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  I am on the Senator’s bill also.  I do oppose the indemnity 
fund.  If there is a desire to prevent this from happening, my frustration is that we have gone 
from 10 inspectors down to almost 2.  With the number of grain buyers, where do you start 
with only 2 inspectors?  I get the impression it hasn’t been a priority for the oversight. 
 
Randy Christmann:  It is a priority.  That is why previous bills were brought to fix it.  The 
legislature has reduced the number.  Now with getting us more authority, they are looking at 
adding to the inspector team. 
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We looked at Indiana’s model of the indemnity fund.  The assessments are voluntary.  If 
refunded, then they are not protected. 
 
Representative Headland:  Does the Senate Bill expand the indemnity fund to specialty 
crops?  I would have objections to that.  I believe the fund in place has been funded on the 
backs of major commodity producers.  Specialty growers need to have their own fund.  Is 
that part of the proposal? 
 
Randy Christmann:  The indemnity fund now is applying to both traditional and specialty 
crops.  But only those who do credit sale contracts pay in.  This would expand it from credit 
sale contracts to all sellers and you can get your money refunded if you wish. 
 
Representative Richter:   Are you suggesting your agency could be the authority and the 
agriculture department would execute it. 
 
Randy Christmann:  No.  I think our agency is the perfect agency to do this.  The legislature 
has chosen for 125 years to regulate this because of a sense that sellers were limited in their 
options.  We are that neutral third party regulator.  Current law restricts us from doing the 
kind of thorough background check that we should be doing.  It doesn’t matter who is 
overseeing them. 
 
Representative Skroch:  In your testimony on page 3 you said with the right tools and 
statutory authority in place, the program can be well managed and implemented by the PSC. 
What was lacking that could have been different in the most recent issue? 
Does Senator Wanzek’s bill give you the right tools and statutory authority? 
 
Randy Christmann:  Senator Wanzek had amendments in the hearing this morning.  Yes, 
that would be a help. 
 
What was lacking in the current case?  We are unable to do a confidential financial review. 
The agriculture department can do that with the livestock program.  We are unable to do that; 
but we can with Senator Wanzek’s bill.   
 
If the bonding company approves them, they must be alright.  But that is not working. 
 
(47:20) 
Representative Tveit:  What are some of the things you have asked for that would have 
eliminated the need for this bill. 
 
Randy Christmann:  In 2015 we sought the ability to do more comprehensive financial 
reviews.  The discussion was that the bonding company will be doing that for you. 
 
In 2017 we asked for expanding the indemnity fund.  I think we asked to expand it too far. 
Senator Wanzek has a better version. 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  Could the financial reviews have been done through 
administrative rules to parallel the livestock industry? 
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Randy Christmann:   No.  In the Century Code there is a section for grain buyers and a 
section for grain warehouses. There was a discussion of USDA requiring a review of certain 
financials in order to approve a state licensing program.  Legislation was passed that says if 
USDA requires it, then you can look at it and keep it confidential.  If we would have done it in 
Administrative Rules for financial information, a legal argument could be made that we have 
to release that because there is a provision that says it is confidential if required by USDA.  
If not required by USDA, you can’t keep it confidential. 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  To get a federal license, that is the first thing they do is check 
financials.  Is that public information? 
 
Randy Christmann:  I don’t know if they publish it or not.   Under our state law, we would 
have to release it if people ask for it. 
 
That would be a simple fix.  But there has been strong opposition to us even looking. 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  The fear was that it becomes public information.  In the Senate 
Bill, how many inspectors are you requesting? 
 
Randy Christmann:  We are requesting field inspectors to go from 1.75 to 3, 
 
Neutral: 
 
Stu Letcher, North Dakota Grain Dealers Association:  We need a robust inspection 
program.  We expect to be regulated. I would like to stay with the PSC but we recognize the 
need.   
 
The commercial grain industry is made up of distinct sectors.  Current licensing law doesn’t 
address those sectors.  We would like to see a comprehensive review of current law and 
adapt the law to the sectors.  We would suggest a legislative study.  
 
Representative Headland:  Could we fix the roving grain buyer situation just by requiring 
financial information to be given prior to being licensed? 
 
Stu Letcher:   The minimum bond for a roving grain buyer is $50,000.  Why not make the 
bond $500,000 or $1 million?  The bonding company will do a financial inspection.  
 
Representative Headland:  How much would a million-dollar bond cost? 
 
Stu Letcher:  The premium is in the $11,000 range.   
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  More brokerage companies are getting involved?  Do you see 
any protection? 
 
Stu Letcher:  When you see the list of claimants for the current situation, not only were 
producers left, there are several elevators putting claims for maybe millions of dollars.  The 
broker was doing the business and sent the young roving grain buyer. 
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The average capacity of the grain elevator has doubled.  There are more people getting in 
between.  That is what should be looked at. The broker helped get the roving grain buyer’s 
name out. 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  The farmer can go through the broker and the buyer comes 
to his yard to pick up the grain.  The elevator is out of the loop completely. 
 
Stu Letcher:  The grain can go anywhere and the elevator is out of the transaction. 
 
(1:02:20) 
Dennis Haugen, North Dakota Grain Growers:  I am a roving grain buyer. 
 
Representative Headland:  How big of a bond do you carry. 
 
Dennis Haugen:  I run a $100,000 bond and a $3 million liability umbrella.  We are strictly a 
cash business where transactions are taken care of in a number of days.  We don’t buy the 
main commodities.  Our specialty is damaged and stressed grains.  We do a lot of work on 
the commercial side. 
 
Representative Headland:  Do you have separation between your roving business and your 
other business. 
 
Dennis Haugen:  We have a facility for commercial seed cleaning with portable grain 
cleaners.  I do all the trading for the roving grain buying entity. 
 
Robert Ferebee, North Dakota Grain Growers Board:  We are going to be scared to sell 
to some of these operations.  That gives the others a captive market. 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  With the different brokers coming in, that should raise a red 
flag. 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  Closed the hearing. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to moving the authority over grain, grain buyers, warehousing, deposits, and 
warehousemen from the PSC to the agriculture commissioner; to provide a penalty; and to 
provide a continuing appropriation. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Representative Schreiber-Beck:   Moved Do Pass and rerefer to Appropriations 
 
Vice Chair Wayne Trottier:  Seconded the motion 
 
 
Representative McWilliams:   There is a better bill in the Senate? 
 
Chairman Dennis Johnson:  There is another bill that addresses it differently. 
 
Representative Richter:  I am not 100% in favor but I am going to vote for it to keep the 
fiscal note alive for the positions 
 
A Roll Call vote was taken:  Yes  _12_, No __0__, Absent ___2__. 

 
Do Pass carries. 

 
Representative Johnson will carry the bill. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to the definition of agriculture commissioner; relating to moving the 
authority over grain, grain buyers, warehousing, deposits, and warehousemen 

from the public service commission to the agriculture commissioner; to provide 
a penalty; and to provide a continuing appropriation. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments # 1 - 6 

 
Chairman Luick: Called the committee to order on HB 1467. Roll call was taken, all 
members were present except Senator Osland.  
 
Representative Dennis Johnson, District 15: Introduced the bill and provided Attachment 
#1. Also Attachment #2, an article from Ag Week titled “24 Entities File $5.2M in Claims 
Against ND Grain Trader Hunter Hanson”.  
 
(9:40) Senator Klein: All we are doing is moving this from the PSC to the Agriculture 
Department. We are also creating that confidentiality we have been lacking. But we are not 
creating any special fund? 
 
Representative Johnson: Correct. We have to get a handle on this. We need to prevent 
things like this from happening, but I don’t want to hurt friendships here. I don’t believe the 
Indemnity Bill will pass the House. If the PSC retains ownership I want to see more personnel 
dedicated to providing that service. I don’t feel like 1 ¾ people can handle this. If it goes to 
the Agriculture Department, I want 3-4 people to oversee this. House Appropriations voted 
to pass the bill out of committee without appropriation, they have the individual Agriculture 
and PSC budgets.   
 
Senator Hogan: Is it really where the actual program is housed or is it a funding issue? I 
remember when we cut those positions from the PSC, I was on Government Ops. That was 
a tough issue and we had these very concerns of this happening then. Without the positions 
will the location make a difference? 
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Representative Johnson: Yes, I believe so. Some folks in the Agriculture department have 
had their phones ringing off the hook. Well the PSC people are the ones with the oversight 
in this. I want the Agriculture people with their feet to the fire to fix this.   
 
Chairman Luick: The money missing today, do we know where those dollars are? 
 
Representative Johnson: I don’t want to get into the gossip circles. The article I passed out 
has an opinion on that. There are brokers involved here that lined this young fellow up as far 
as making transactions. My question is, who are they responsible to? Obviously they are 
licensed in the states they do business in. This one in particular is out of Minnesota. A lot of 
these transactions are lined up through him. He gets a cut out of every bushel.  
 
(15:35) Doug Goehring, ND Agriculture Commissioner: Testified in favor of HB 1467 and 
provided Attachment #3. He also spoke to some changes he wants in the bill (discussed in 
written testimony.) 
 
(21:06) Chairman Luick: These items you laid out for requirements, are those administrative 
rules through the agency or those would need to be in Century Code? 
 
Doug Goehring: I think most of this can be accomplished through administrative rules. It 
also brings open the whole conversation.  
 
(22:22) Senator Hogan: Do you think we need to put a requirement of financial records of 
roving grain buyers in this bill? Those are pretty dramatic changes.  
 
Doug Goehring: I threw them out for conversation. With respect to our roving grain buyers, 
and we do have some good ones, if you set up the right structure you can limit what they do. 
I have livestock dealers, agents, we monitor them. I am more worried about how we provide 
that oversight to those out there. If you see someone upside down, we’ll have a hearing. First 
thing is I’ll give them a call and talk about their situation. First time they bounce a check, we 
are going to have a hearing a sit down. It will be uncomfortable. But our responsibility is to 
provide that oversight and protect the consumer. I’m sorry that one person has a really bad 
situation, but it’s our responsibility to make sure they don’t do anymore harm. This would 
minimize the risk and harm. 
 
Senator Hogan: Does this bill give you enough authority to do what needs to be done? Are 
the staffing needs met in this bill? 
 
Doug Goehring: No, you’re going to need 1 person in house just to look over financial 
records, balance sheets, debt asset ratio, and ask those question. The other 3 are going to 
have to be out doing inspections at elevators, meeting with buyers. When you walk in 3 things 
should happen. what’s the accounts payable, accounts receivable and daily position report. 
The other side is to sit down with the elevators and talk about what their policies are. You 
see our ethanol industry that handles millions of bushels. They clear their accounts in 10 
days. We have talked about all cash sales if all else fails. We have smaller elevators that 
don’t have the resources of the bigger ones. We might need to put in the law that all cash 
sales have to be settled within 30 days. 
 



Senate Agriculture Committee  
HB 1467 
3/8/2019 
Page 3  
   

(27:30) Vice Chair Myrdal: I have a lot of smaller elevators that couldn’t handle those 10-20 
day requirements due to staffing and resources. If we put those definitions in Code, they 
should be broad. This needs to be wide open and talked about. Would it be better to make it 
more broad so you have authority to set those administrative rules. 
 
Doug Goehring: That is the ground work. We need to work through the rest with the 
Agriculture industry. If we get what needs to happen laid out, then we build the structure 
around it. 
 
Senator Larsen: Did you have the indemnity with the cattle industry like with the grain? 
 
Doug Goehring: No. I like components of the indemnity program. It might need to be 
structured different. It should never be in place of good regulatory oversight. When you ask 
us to pay for the problems, my job is to make sure those things don’t happen. In 10 years 
I’ve only had 1 problem in the livestock industry, and that individual was intending to do harm. 
We pulled his license, had a hearing all within 10 days. 
 
Senator Klein: It will boil down to, should this bill pass, the Agriculture Commissioner would 
be in charge of grain handling. Can the Agriculture department do it?  
 
Doug Goehring: This has nothing to do with my friends at the PSC or my friend Randy 
Christmann. If you chose to give this to us with the authority, we would do so.  
 
Chairman Luick: We are going to change the order of testimony today, Randy has to be at 
a different hearing. We will have the commissioners testimony in opposition.  
 
Randy Christmann, Public Service Commissioner: Testified in opposition to HB 1467 and 
provided Attachment #4.  
I was going to leave it at that, but I wasn’t happy with the implications made this morning. 
Provided Attachment #5. I came on in 2013. We brought legislation to fix this confidentiality 
issue many times for many sessions. I just passed out the legal portion of this. Representative 
Johnson didn’t explain this accurately according to the law. If you just read the last sentence 
it sounds simple enough. But if you read the first sentence of that subsection, then it changes. 
This is not for our licenses that go to those who are also federal licensees. For us to issue 
the ND license to the federal licensees, we are not required by USDA to look at their financial 
records. These records are not required in any way, so this section does not apply to it, there 
is nothing in law granting us ability to automatically deem those confidential. We take this 
responsibility very seriously. I don’t want our inspectors to collect financial information and 
then someone else be able to just come in and review that without their approval. That would 
be fundamentally wrong. We have brought that up before. Part of this is what is in the Century 
Code, part of this is the legislative intent. We brought this up in 2015, the House turned it into 
a study and then didn’t study it. Read a section of an article in the ND Grain Buyers 
Association Magazine about who should issue a bond. They opposed that bill. This applicant 
we are talking about today had 4 different bonds. None of them were ever revoked. He started 
as a roving grain buyer so he got a bond. Then he grew beyond that so he shopped around 
a got a different bond. Then he got a grain warehouse so he needed a separate bond for that 
and he got it. Then he got a second grain warehouse. He had 4 different bonds. All that 
discussion from the Grain Dealers Association and from multiple legislators in the House, 
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talking about how the bonding company does this financial review and we should stay out of 
them. How is that working out? We were right in 2015, but it didn’t happen. Read a section 
of the standing committee minutes from 2015. “It seems it’s between the PSC and the 
auditors and the grain dealers. The grain dealers were opposed to having the PSC come in 
to look at the books. It causes customers to get weary of the financial condition of the 
operation. Then he proposed an amendment that gets rid of the bill and puts it into a study.” 
We didn’t stop there. We accepted that the legislature doesn’t want us looking at the books. 
In 2017 we brought a bill to enhance that indemnity fund to cover more people. That started 
in the house, they striped out the indemnity fund part. The safety net portion was taken out. 
 
Continued with written testimony, Attachment #4 page 2.  
 
I would say we need 4 employees as well. May I remind you, as Senator Hogan said, we 
didn’t take those employees away.  We can’t review the financials, I never believed we 
needed 4 doing this, because we didn’t have that authority. When 2346 passes and we’re 
able to do the financials, then that is when we need the addition people. The Senate has 
taken care of that with our appropriations bill. As far as people’s duties with this, the 
Agriculture Commissioner and I see that the same say. Out in office person would be divided 
as part of the responsibility of 3 different FTEs, who all have other regulatory portions. 1 
would be the director of it, 1 is an admin person, 1 is an account position. That is so efficient, 
because they’re already there. 
 
Concluded with written testimony, Attachment #4, on page 3.  
 
(46:53)Chairman Luick: The committee will go back into the “in favor of” testimony.   
 
Dan Wogsland, Executive Director ND Grain Growers Association (NDGGA): Testified 
in support of HB 1467 and provided Attachment #6. 
 
Chairman Luick: The funding that was taken away, do you know why that happened? 
 
Dan Wogsland: No, I do not.  
 
Senator Klein: At the end of the day we took those people away. We’re pointing fingers, 
which is easy to do after the fact. I’ve been here when we created the indemnity fund. I know 
he’s passionate, he was passionate back in the legislature trying to fix this and do the right 
thing. I don’t know if you supported 2346 or not.  
 
Dan Wogsland: I actually did not.  
 
Senator Klein: That is the hard part here. Knowing the past and what happened. We are to 
blame too.  
 
Senator Hogan: In 2015-27, when the PSC asked for additional regulations, did your 
association support that financial accountability? 
 
Dan Wogsland: I would have to look back on my testimony. I do remember we were 
supporting the grain industry at that point in time.  
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Senator Hogan: More than just the FTEs, the real issue was we needed more regulation 
and accountability. We got some major push back. It might be interesting to go back and 
look.  
 
Dan Wogsland: That would be good, appreciate that.  
 
Scott Rising, ND Soybean Growers Association: We did not support 1517. It was a 
massive change. Our opinion was it took the court out of the system. I have some strong 
opinions about this, but I don’t know what to do with it. I have concerns. It’s not the grain 
industry I’m concerned about, I’m concerned about the producer. Things like has this moved 
from silo to silo so to speak. As it moves from organization to organization it can be very 
smooth. That is not the case here. These are both led by very capable folks that are elected. 
We have concerns that all the appropriate processes move with it so it can succeed. I think 
the PSC is highly favored when it comes to the legal end of things. We don’t have that 
experience with the Agriculture department, we also don’t have the FTEs. For us it doesn’t 
break down to FTEs. The State can afford to do whatever it takes to get this right. We 
supported 2346. It has an indemnity fund in it. If you chose not to self-insure, you don’t have 
to. It re-identifies a process. These are not inconveniences, this is life changing. Our final 
evaluation is past performance is a good indicator, and we don’t like what we see. Even 
among some of the best, it is easy to fall back on “Well I didn’t have the authority”. It think in 
the best interest of our grain growers, I am 51% for this. It cannot be the people who are 
regulated who set the policy, it has to be the producer. 
 
Senator Klein: I wanted ask Stu to come to the podium to answer some questions.  
 
Stu Letcher, ND Grain Dealers Association: I don’t have written testimony. We are neutral 
on the bill. I am open to answering questions though.  
 
Senator Klein: When did you come on? (He was told 2015.) Senator Myrdal referenced 
small elevators, with the 30 day thing and today’s technology they all have computers. Do 
the days need to be adjusted? 
 
Stu Letcher: There is a term called conversion. The farmer hauls in the grain, dumps it and 
he get a scale ticket. That shows I have this much grain of this quality. That needs to be 
converted into cash, credit sale contract or warehouse receipt. Current law state 40 days for 
that. I could of brought 50 industry managers to tell you the same thing. Conversion in not 
the responsibility of the elevator manager. We will happily write the check as soon as the 
grain is in the pit. It is the producers decision when to convert. We have discussed with the 
PSC and considered putting it into law. Right now it says the elevator manager must convert 
that scale ticket, it isn’t our decision. PSC inspection reports indicate the 2 main infractions 
are un-converted scale tickets and un-signed contracts. Most of that time is because the 
producer doesn’t want to make a decision. We want to put that into law so it’s on the producer, 
not the elevator. Some producers will do business with the competition because they’re 
willing to bend the law. Warehouse receipts are a rare occasion in our industry. 
 
Chairman Luick: Would that be priced at the time of the conversion? 
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Stu Letcher: If it’s a cash price, they will get the board price the day they convert. That is 
sometimes why they wait.  
 
(1:04:57) Vice Chair Myrdal: There is a big game there of income for the producer. Can you 
explain the different options? You contract it for a certain price or you don’t because the price 
might go up. Sometimes you get screwed over.   
 
Stu Letcher: There are 3 categories of conversion in the law. Warehouse receipt which says 
the elevator says you have this much grain on storage and the possession of that is still in 
the farmers hands. Cash conversion where they write a check here and now. Then we have 
credit sale contract option, there are many forms of that. They all mean the payment for that 
grain will happen on a future day. We might fix one portion of the pricing system, whether 
that be bases or futures or the amount we will deliver.  
 
Vice Chair Myrdal: It is basically an investment game. Do you have any rough idea of 
percentages of what is used more? 
 
Stu Letcher: Well over 50% of the grain is marketed on delayed price contracts. They offer 
more options. There are a lot of cash sales that happen during certain parts of the year, for 
cash flow reasons.  
 
Senator Klein: 30 days is related to how the producer is doing business. Does moving it to 
30 days help with insolvency issues? Does that put the grain warehouse at risk? 
 
Stu Letcher: Moving the days from 45 to 30 doesn’t make any difference to our industry. We 
should be prepared to write the check when it is delivered. There is no solvency issue as far 
as conversion. The idea with cutting that down 15 days is there are 15 days less risk to the 
producer.  
 
Chairman Luick: The ethanol plants do this in 12-15 days. Does this have any bearing on 
the indemnity fund dollar amounts or the bonding?  
 
Stu Letcher: The conversion time has no effect on either of those.  
 
Senator Klein: Confidentiality issues came up a couple times. Are there issues with the PSC 
being able to have that confidentiality? How does it work and what can we do to fix it? 
 
Stu Letcher: I stand with my 2015 testimony. We came out in opposition to requiring financial 
statements, and we still are today. I keep in contact with my predecessor, we mirror the same 
opinion. We have 373 licensed warehouses in the state, 99 licensed roving grain buyers. 
Who is going to be looking at all those financial statements? From what I hear 1 FTE will be 
looking at financial statements. Looking at a balance sheet for a cattle buyer versus a grain 
warehouse is very different. Everyone’s thinks it’s a confidentiality issue, that is a small piece 
of it. We have concerns with confidentiality, just like with anytime a government organization 
gets your information. We haven’t talked about that elevator’s banker or the bonding 
company. If you looked at the elevators financial statements, this year they aren’t looking so 
great. Just with the tariffs, volumes being down, the winter we’ve had and rail service, they 
aren’t meeting their forecasts. Our financials don’t look strong if the industry is down. If you’re 
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an elevator and have a business plan with a banker behind you, and a bonding company that 
is willing to bond you; Our concern is, they will have a hearing or pull the license immediately. 
Not only have you put that elevators equity in jeopardy, you put that bond in jeopardy. That 
is why when the law was written, they didn’t require financial statements. MN recently 
stopped the requirement for financial statements. It didn’t provide the info they needed. There 
was a case in Ashby, MN. They had financials that looked just fine for 5 years. It wasn’t until 
the loan was called in and they started looking for grain, that they found problems. We are 
against the PSC cutting that inspection division. We’ve always wanted at least 2-3 inspectors 
out there. That is the way prevention happens. If they’re looking at all these things, that goes 
farther than just a financial statement.  
 
(1:15:28) Chairman Luick: No matter how you look at this, doing audits on financials or the 
inspection on sight,  we can be hosed either way. How can we get on top of this more quickly?  
 
Stu Letcher: That was my original intent for my comments. First I’ll address Senator Klein 
with his bonding question. I suppose there is a conflict of interest, we operate a bond agency. 
We were the first warehouse bond agency in the state. There was no one else willing to do 
it. We’ve been writing bonds since the 1930s. I stand by the article I wrote in our magazine 
in 2015. We believe the bonding company should be the arbiter of the strength of the financial 
statement. I’ve seen what our company requires for financials. We have struggled to get 
people bonded. We’ve had people we will not write bonds for. Not all companies are created 
equal. Randy said there were 4 bonds in place for the current case. They were written with 
4 different companies, why is that? I got a call a month and a half ago from a location that 
had been sold. The buyer wanted a bond. I explained to them that there is an application 
process then the company will want complete financials, sign a general agreement of 
indemnity. The person made the comment they don’t give their financials to anybody. I sent 
him the info, and didn’t hear from him. A month later we get notice from the PSC that this 
warehouse is licensed. Yes, bonding should be the arbiter of the financial statements, but 
maybe we need to look at the companies. If they are an “A” or a “AA” rated company, they 
have a good operation. Maybe we should add that to the law, the rating of the company. 
 
Chairman Luick: The reason they had 4 different companies is for the same reason I can 
go to multiple companies. If I want to be bonded for $100,000 they probably won’t do a 
financial audit on me. If it was $1M, then the process would be stepped up. If he was under 
that threshold, there he goes. He can get that bonding.  
 
Stu Letcher: In the law it states you can only have 1 bond enforced. You can’t have more 
than 1 bond enforced. 
 
Chairman Luick: How did that happen? 
 
Stu Letcher: In the current case, he was required to have the original bong, then he went to 
another company to get a bigger bond. Then he has warehouse license with 2 warehouses. 
We have a lot of elevators that will expand their storage in the fall. That is required to be 
bonded. We also call up our current bonding company and tell them we need to add one. 
They look at the financial statement and they let us know. That did not happen in this case. 
He should of gone back to the original company. The more you increase that bond, the more 
the company looks into the financials. I’m speculating. It would be logical he got the first 
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bond, need a bigger bond so he used the financials that he had already done to get that one. 
I wonder what the rating of these companies was. 
 
Chairman Luick: There is no oversight on the PSC part to make sure the bonds were intact 
to be covering what his business was.  
 
Stu Letcher: He was bonded to level required by law. It just states “bonded”, not what the 
quality of that is. If you had a class A rated bonding company reviewing that, it would help. 
The minimum bond for a roving grain buyer is $50,000. To get bonded for that, you have to 
show you have $50,000 in equity. That is easy to do. Maybe we should add a zero to that. 
Or make it 1M. Bonding is not insurance, it is the companies opinion of the financial health 
of that company. You increase that bonding level, you increase the scrutiny.  
 
Senator Klein: 1467 and 2346 both require a lot more digging into your books. You would 
be opposed to that? 
 
Stu Letcher: Yes, but if it gets put in the law, we would deal with it. We are not picking sides 
with where this should be administrated. We want to see a wholesale review of the entire 
law. We have warehouses, roving grain buyers and facility based grain buyers. There’s a lot 
more than that in the industry today. A lot of the changes in the bill that originated here are 
changes that effect warehouses. We should not be treating roving grain buyers and 
warehouses the same. We shouldn’t be treating processors the same. There is a list of the 
insolvencies back to 1975 on the PSC website. It is a miss-match of processors, specialty 
companies, roving grain buyers. We want a bigger wholesale review of the entire law. Our 
president said the same thing. We need to take a bigger look at the law. Some of these 
changes may help, but doesn’t solve the problems. 
 
Senator Klein: We are all looking for good ideas. Especially for the folks in the industry to 
help us with that.   
 
Stu Letcher: If we’re talking the current case, there are 7-8 elevators on the insolvency list. 
We haven’t talked about the broker that built the trust of the commercial side of the industry 
as well. He’s taking 3-10 cents a bushel. What does he have invested? A phone a piece of 
paper. There are more and more of those across the country. We should look at how to 
address those guys as well. Rather than make reactive changes because of the most recent 
case, let’s take some time. MN has a grain commission, who is regulated by the Agriculture 
department. We are advocating for maybe a resolution or study. There are a lot of people we 
haven’t talked to. The commercial bankers, grain elevator auditing firms and the intricacies 
of a financial statement. The balance sheet may look healthy on the face of it. People spend 
hours and hours on a single statement.   
 
Chairman Luick: How often are those facilities audited, is there a mandate? 
 
Stu Letcher: There is no mandate in law. It depends on what their bank requires. Do we 
need to require an audited financial statement? The way it reads now it a “Financial 
statement”. That can read however the person wants it to.  
 
Chairman Luick: Called Konrad Crockford to the podium to answer questions 
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Konrad Crockford, Director of Compliance, PSC: I will answer questions. 
 
Chairman Luick: Does the PSC have the authority to do these financial audits as it stands 
today? 
 
Konrad Crockford: The inspector can look at the books of the elevator which encompasses 
the financial statements. The issue is the confidentiality piece of that. It was attempted in the 
past to get these into statute that these were confidential. When the inspectors go in the field 
they use a software program that they put the data into. The issue is that data gets put into 
that software, which is kept in our files. The question is, what is confidential, what is not. The 
entity has to apply for confidentiality with the commission. They have to identify what they 
specifically want protected. We don’t have a blanket requirement for that. 
 
Chairman Luick: What is the process with bonds? How do you determine if they are bonded 
appropriately? 
 
Konrad Crockford: We’ve got 3 bonding schedules. One for each of the state licenses we 
offer. We have a state warehouse bonding schedule, facility based grain buyer bonding 
schedule and the roving grain buyer schedule. The bond that a licensee will be determined 
by is that schedule and specific requirements. The state licensed warehouse, the bond is 
based off of the physical capacity. Bonding is based in administrative rule. If a facility turns 
the capacity over 7 times, there is an additional bond required. The facility based grain buyers 
are bonded on a 3 year rolling average based on the amount of bushels purchased in a year.  
 
Chairman Luick: Would a financial audit be just as important as a physical audit? 
 
Konrad Crockford: There is definitely merit to that. You have the opportunity to deep dive 
things in the office. Part of the proposal is that annual financial statement. You’re not looking 
at where a company is in a certain month. It is a snap shot in time. In an annual report rough 
months and good months Average out. 
 
Chairman Luick: Is an audited financial statement a better way to do that? 
 
Konrad Crockford: Yes. An audited financial statement has certain advantages. It is 
prepared by a firm with experience. That is an independent 3rd party. They fill out a form 
without being able to physically look at accounts and bank records. How are you 
guaranteeing that other than a perjury statement, that what they provided is accurate.  
 
Chairman Luick: What is your opinion on a possible study? 
 
Konrad Crockford: I can’t speak for the commission. I can point to the facts. A licensed 
roving grain buyer and a licensed warehouse license. He had 2 facilities. That kicked off at 
the beginning of November. We are still in the process of receiving claims for people wanting 
to file for accounts owed. We are still within that window. It will end the first week of April. 
That is based off of when the final publication of the commission being appointed trustee 
being published in the papers. We don’t know the larger picture yet. We are getting those 
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claims in now. Those have to be analyzed by our inspectors to see if they are valid. Some 
people may be putting a claim out there for a contract they had, that they never delivered on.  
There is a lot of analysis on our end that needs to be done still. 
 
Chairman Luick: Does the indemnity fund cover anything that this character had been 
doing? Because he had a physical plant, are any victims being covered at all? 
 
Konrad Crockford: That will depend on the nature of business they had. The indemnity fund 
is not related to having a physical location or not. It has to do with issuing credit share 
contracts. We have to evaluate the terms and conditions and see if that contract is a valid 
credit sale contract. That will determine what puts the meter in the trust fund or the indemnity 
fund.  
 
Chairman Luick: What happened to the money of the $5-10M that has been taken, where 
is that? 
 
Konrad Crockford: The investigation is still ongoing. From what we’ve seen it didn’t make 
it into his business accounts. We are discussing with companies that worked with him how 
much was paid to him. The other issue is trying to balance what the claim is versus what the 
individual is getting paid for the grain. He isn’t always making money on these deals. He 
would sell the grain for less than he contracted with the farmer. I think we need to evaluate 
those numbers to see what was paid to him versus what he promised to pay other people.  
 
Senator Klein: I heard he took his girlfriend to Paris. Is there any validity, the PSC was 
notified, and no one was alarmed? Throw us some information as to if that was true? 
 
Konrad Crockford: We do receive some communication about verifying the license status 
of a grain elevator or buyer and their bonding level at that point. We can provide the info we 
have on hand. In our initial inspection, he didn’t raise any eyebrows. When it comes down to 
it, without the factual info given to us about “he didn’t pay me what he said”. We can take 
concerns, but they can only go so far. Commissioner Christmann mentioned we are bound 
by statutory requirements as far as when a licensee is issued. As long as you meet those 
requirements, we don’t have legal action to not issue a license.  
 
Senator Klein: Would you say you got more inquires of this fellow then others? If 5 people 
call to ask, doesn’t that send a message? Did you have more than one concern? 
 
Konrad Crockford: It isn’t unusual for us to receive calls on a new person or license. We 
didn’t receive an overabundance of communication on him. It didn’t indicate that people were 
having any troubles. Our first indication of people not getting paid was at the beginning of 
November. We took swift action. How much alarm do we put into that one call with not 
feedback. I don’t the calls that the department of Agriculture had, we didn’t get that. I can’t 
discriminate on age for license either.  
 
Chairman Luick: I asked to have him come up. A lot of things need to be ironed out. All 
information we can get is important here.  
 



Senate Agriculture Committee  
HB 1467 
3/8/2019 
Page 11  
   

Stu Letcher: We’ve had grain licensing since the 1800s. Maybe we don’t require financials 
for a reason. Be careful what you wish for. If they get financial statements and something like 
this happens anyway, there will be major law suits. There is liability involved. 
 
Chairman Luick: There is a term for the involvement, we’ll call it “Skin in the game”. 
 
Stu Letcher: With some of the tradition insolvencies. It wasn’t the elevator that made the 
decision they were insolvent. The banker or lender that is financing the elevator, they make 
the determination when that elevator is insolvent. In the case of Falkirk. They made a grain 
sale, and deposited it in the bank. The bank made the decision to put that toward their note, 
rather than allow them to pay producers. 
 
Chairman Luick: With the listing with the Ag Seek Article, do we have more insolvencies 
coming? 
 
Stu Letcher: You’ve seen the figures in that article. There are elevators taking some heavy 
financial burdens on. It’s a little early to tell. I’m keeping my fingers crossed, but it is possible 
 
(1:50:53) Konrad Crockford: I failed to mention, regarding the calls on the individual. We 
did an out of cycle inspection on the business he was operating in July. At that time, our 
inspections are a snapshot in time, there was nothing of concern at that time. The calls we 
received didn’t contain specifics. It was a verification of licensing and bonding. I know there 
is discussion about the different bonds he had. We see the results of not being able to bond 
an elevator. We get bond cancellation notifications, then that entity try’s to source out another 
bond. We don’t know the history going on in the back channels. We get a cancellation notice, 
then we either need a reinstatement letter or evidence of a new bond. That is the limit to what 
we see. Some change companies based strictly on premiums. 
 
Chairman Luick: Do you think the indemnity fund has merit? Should it go by the way side 
or evaluation and sorting out? 
 
Konrad Crockford: From research and looking at other states, we have some of the highest 
requirements out there. I get calls from other companies. Our licensees are trying to do an 
alternative to a bond, because the premiums they pay are cost $20,000-$30,000 a year. 
Other states have gone away from bonding, I am not advocating for that. There is some merit 
to looking into an indemnity fund. It has been very successful in other states. Indiana was 
researched thoroughly some of the concepts in SB 2346 were taken from their program. For 
the safety net, how much do we want to be there and where will that money come from? 
 
Senator Klein: Representative Johnson and the concern the House has with expanding the 
indemnity fund; When an insurance companies go under, the other companies get the money 
to make sure no one is injured from the company that fails. Insurers are trying to be 
responsible amongst their own group. There are times when we have to do these things for 
the good of the people. 
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Chairman Luick: You look at no-fault insurance, in a mindset it is a system that works in 
similar ways.  
 
Called for further testimonies. Adjourned the committee on HB 1467. 
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